
Adult Commissioning Committee 

DATE: Wednesday, 10 July 2019

TIME: 3.00 pm

VENUE: The Salford Room - St James's House Pendleton Way Salford M6 5FW.

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence - 5 minutes 

2  Declarations of Interest - 5 minutes 

3  Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 12 June 2019 - Chair - 5 
minutes 

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Finance Report - Joanne Hardman - 20 minutes (Pages 5 - 20)

5  Adult Commissioning Report - Harry Golby/Judd Skelton - 15 
minutes 

(Pages 21 - 30)

6  Adults Transformation Programme Report - Harry Golby/Judd 
Skelton - 15 minutes 

(Pages 31 - 50)

7  Briefing Update - Urgent & Emergency Care - Stephen Tilley - 15 
minutes 

(Pages 51 - 60)

8  Draft ACC Workplan 2019/20 - Chair - 5 minutes (Pages 61 - 62)

9  Any Other Business - Chair - 5 minutes 

10  Time, Date and Location of Future Meetings 

3:00pm on Wednesday 11 September 2019 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 9 October 2019 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 6 November 2019 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 8 January 2020 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 12 February 2020 – Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 11 March 2020 – St James’ House.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack





1

Minutes of the Adult Commissioning Committee (ACC)
held on 12 June 2019 in the Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre

Present:

Dr Peter Brambleby (PB) Interim Director of Public Health
Mr Steve Dixon (SD) Chief Finance Officer - CCG
Mr David Flinn (DF) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Cllr Jane Hamilton (JH) Executive Support for Social Care & Mental Health - 

SCC
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JoH) Chief Finance Officer - SCC
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH) Lead Member for Finance & Support Services - SCC
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods
Dr David McKelvey (DM) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Mrs Charlotte Ramsden (CR) Strategic Director People - SCC
Dr Tom Regan (TR) Clinical Director for Transformation
Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health & Wellbeing - 

SCC
Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT) Medical Director - CCG - in the chair
Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation - CCG

In attendance:

Mr Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning - CCG
Mr Judd Skelton (JS) Assistant Director - Integrated Commissioning - 

CCG/SCC
Miss Clare Mayo (CM) Integrated Commissioning Manager (Adult Mental 

Health) - CCG/SCC
Mr Mike McHugh (MR) Senior Democratic Services Adviser - SCC

1. Apologies for Absence

1.1 Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Mr Anthony Hassall and 
Mrs Karen Proctor.

2. Declarations of Interest

2.1 There were no declarations of interest in relation to any of the items on the 
agenda.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

3. Minutes of Proceedings

3.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 8 May 2019 were approved as a correct 
record, subject to the inclusion of Dr Tom Regan and Miss Clare Mayo on the 
list of those in attendance at the meeting.  

4. Finance

4a. Service and Financial Group Terms of Reference

4a.1 SD submitted a report providing details of the purpose and scope of the 
Service and Finance Group (SFG). 

4a.2 SD confirmed that the SFG undertook robust checking and monitoring of all 
service and provided the Integrated Commissioning Committees with 
assurance that detailed discussion and consideration on finance, contract and 
procurement issues had been undertaken prior to papers and decisions being 
made at the Commissioning Committees.

4a.3 SD also provided details of the Terms of Reference for the SFG which were 
submitted for the comments of the ACC members.

4a.4 Discussion took place in respect of a number of issues, including - 

- whether the membership of the SFG needed to include Elected 
Members from SCC or Clinicians from CCG. 

It was agreed that this was not a requirement owing to the non-decision 
making role played by the SFG.   

- ongoing work to produce a full list of contracts currently commissioned 
by the CCG and SCC and associated actions to facilitate future 
contract end date alignment in order to avoid duplication and overlap of 
service provision.

- a requirement to ensure that the principles of social value are included 
in all future procurement and commissioning exercises   

4a.5 The ACC noted the report and approved the Terms of Reference for the 
Service and Financial Group.

Page 2



3

4b. National Living Wage

4b.1 SD provided an update relating to the financial implications arising from the 
increase to the National Living Wage which was implemented on 1 April 2019.

4b.2 The ACC noted the report.

4c. Financial Position - Main Risks

4c.1 SD provided an update in respect of this matter.

4c.2 The ACC noted that a full report would be presented at the next meeting of 
this Committee.

5. Mental Health Progress Report

5.1 JS and CM submitted a report providing 

(a) details of a range of national, Greater Manchester and local priorities in 
Adult Mental Health. 

(b) details of the priorities and targets identified in the NHS Five Year 
Forward View for Mental Health.

(c) an overview of the Mental Health Grants programme administered by 
Salford CVS using Greater Manchester Mental Health Transformation 
funding.

(d) an update on the development of a Salford Living Well model, scaling 
up learning form Lambeth over a three year programme.

5.2. Discussion took place in respect of a number of issues, including -

- planning being undertaken to ensure that service systems are able to 
accommodate the growing instances of individuals requiring 
Psychological Therapies

- the number of instances of self harm among teenage girls, both 
nationally and locally

5.3. The ACC noted the report.

Page 3



4

6. Cancer Care - Quarterly Update Report

6.1 HG submitted a report providing an outline of local work to improve cancer 
services and early diagnosis of cancer.

6.2 SG confirmed that Salford’s Cancer work programme was based on the 
Greater Manchester Cancer Outcomes Plan and overseen by the Cancer & 
Scheduled Care Delivery Board. The domains of the GM plan are:

• Prevention
• Early Diagnosis
• Improved and Standardised Care and Education
• Commissioning
• Patient Experience
• Living With and Beyond Cancer

6.3. Discussion took place in respect of a number of issues, including -

- issues surrounding the performance of the Cancer Patients - 2 Week 
Waits (Breast Symptoms)

- the need to enable and encourage more people to seek early diagnosis 
of symptoms.

6.4. The ACC noted the report.

7. Any Other Business

7.1 There were no items of any other business.

8. Future Meetings

8.1 The following dates for future meetings of the Committee were noted:-

3:00pm on Wednesday 10 July 2019 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 11 September 2019 - Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 9 October 2019 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 6 November 2019 - Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 8 January 2020 - St James’ House;
3:00pm on Wednesday 12 February 2020 - Civic Centre, Salford Suite;
3:00pm on Wednesday 11 March 2020 - St James’ House.

Page 4



 

1

ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM NO 4

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information 

DATE OF MEETING 10 JULY 2019

Report of: Chief Finance Officer

Date of Paper: 10th July 2019

Subject: Finance Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

Steve Dixon, Chief Finance Officer and 
Deputy Chief Accountable Officer
0161 212 4804

Purpose of Paper:

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with:

• An update on the 2019/20 financial performance of the Integrated Fund for Adult 
services (Section 3)

• An update on the additional funding approved for Adult Social Care, including 
benefits realisation, latest forecast spend position and approval from the national 
team on the Better Care Fund (BCF) (Sections 4 and 5)

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

2

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

Footnote:

Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 6



 

3Page 7



  

4

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

x

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

x

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 

Legal Advice Sought x

Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)

Detailed financial position reported 
to the Service and Finance Group 
on 2nd July 2019.

Forecast amended 
following discussion and 
more up to date 
information shared in the 
meeting.  More information 
added to the report on 
performance against the 
Improved Better Care 
Fund (iBCF) measures.

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 8



  

5

Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)
Finance Report – 10th July 2019

1. Executive Summary

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update on how the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is performing in this financial 
year (2019/20). This report is based on month 2 (May 2019) finance information.  Based on 
the latest financial information, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently 
forecasting to overspend by £2.4m in 2019/20.

Section 3 highlights the main areas of over and underspend within the adults’ Integrated 
Fund.  Adult Social Care (ASC) is forecasting to overspend by £6m, which shows a 
worsening position from last year’s expenditure by £2.3m.  Last year ASC overspent by 
£5.2m however commissioners funded £1.5m of pressures in 2019/20.  There is a financial 
risk share in place in the contract between the commissioners and the provider whereby   
Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust (SRFT) will contribute towards the overspend for 
2019/20, currently this means £2.8m is charged to the Integrated Fund.

Section 4 reports the findings of the working group that was established to review the key 
areas of overspend in Adult Social Care (ASC), namely Learning Disabilities and 
Residential Care.  The group have made good progress on residential care with an 
established data set in order to review residential spend in more detail. 

Section 5 focuses on the ‘improved Better Care Fund’ (iBCF) providing an update on the 
measures that have been developed to show how the additional funding will improve 
outcomes for the population being supported.  This section also provides an update on how 
this year’s money has been spent to date. 

Section 6 The impact of the transformation schemes is being evaluated and overseen by 
the Adults’ Advisory Board (AAB).  ICAB has commenced development of an evaluation 
schedule for 2019 to evaluate all schemes along with the financial impact of these 
schemes. The first set of service evaluations will be reported to the Adults’ Commissioning 
Committee in October 2019.  

ACC is asked to note the in-year and forecast position for the adult’s pool for 
2019/20.

Page 9



  

6

2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with in-year 
update on how the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is performing in the financial year 
(2019/20).  

The appendices contain a lot of detail and are appended to give members a more thorough 
understanding of the scope of the Integrated Fund.  There are explanatory notes included in 
the appendices which hopefully explain the key messages contained within them.

The Service and Finance Group (SFG) has reviewed the budgets in detail at the meeting on 
the 2nd July 2019.  At this stage of the year, the year-end forecast on adults’ services is an 
overspend by £2.4m.  Please not that we only have 2 months data on which to base this 
forecast and this will be reviewed and updated in light of future months’ information. At the 
start of the year May’s ACC flagged up financial risk of around £2.0m for 2019/20

3. 2019/20 IN YEAR MONITORING

This finance report is based on information up to the end of May 2019.  A detailed analysis 
of the position for each of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund is shown in 
Appendices One to Six.

At this stage of the financial year, the Adults Integrated Care pooled budget is anticipated to 
over spend by £2.4m, as shown in Table 1 below.

Table 1: 2019/20 Financial Summary

Page 10



  

7

YTD 
Budget

 YTD 
Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s Notes

TOTAL FUNDING £65,377 £65,377 £0 £394,673 £394,673 £0

Adult Social Care £15,607 £16,073 £467 £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 See Appendix 1
Acute Services £13,993 £14,022 £29 £83,958 £84,133 £174 See Appendix 2
Community Services £4,836 £4,797 -£39 £29,013 £28,745 -£269 See Appendix 3

TOTAL - ICO £34,435 £34,892 £457 £206,611 £209,317 £2,706

Acute Services £4,362 £4,566 £204 £26,171 £27,316 £1,145
Adult Social Care £626 £626 £0 £3,758 £3,758 £0
Adult Social Care - Capital £514 £514 £0 £3,085 £3,085 £0
Community Assets/ Voluntary Sector £309 £309 -£0 £1,853 £1,851 -£2
Community Services £410 £410 £0 £2,461 £2,451 -£10
Continuing Health Care & Funded Nursing Care £1,135 £996 -£139 £6,811 £6,619 -£193
Mental Health Services - NHS £5,806 £5,806 £0 £34,839 £34,839 £0
Mental Health Services - Private & Voluntary Sector £1,279 £1,259 -£19 £7,671 £7,699 £28
Public Health Services £1,402 £1,402 £0 £8,415 £8,395 -£20

TOTAL - Non ICO £15,844 £15,889 £45 £95,064 £96,012 £948 See Appendix 4

TOTAL - Aligned £15,097 £15,135 £38 £90,585 £90,811 £226 See Appendix 5

TOTAL - Committed Developments £0 £0 £0 £2,413 £966 -£1,447 See Appendix 6

TOTAL EXPENDITIURE £65,377 £65,916 £540 £394,673 £397,106 £2,433

Over/(Under) Spend £0 £540 £540 £0 £2,433 £2,433

2019/20 Monitoring

The main reasons for the under and overspends against each of the sections are:

• ICO Adult Social Care (ASC) Services (Appendix 1):  These services are currently 
forecast to overspend by £6.0m in 2019/20.  This year there is a risk share been agreed 
between commissioners and the ICO in relation to ASC spend.  Under the terms of the 
risk share, the financial risk to the Integrated Fund is forecast at £2.8m.  The main areas 
of overspend are within Learning Disabilities and Residential Care.  The budget for ASC 
for 2019/20 was set at the recurrent budget value for 2018/19 plus an increase of £1.5m 
for cost pressures in relation to The Limes, Bourke Gardens, Residential and Learning 
Difficulties Placements.  Last year ASC overspent by £5.2m however commissioners 
funded £1.5m of pressures in 2019/20 therefore there is a worsening of position of £2.3m 
in 2019/20..  

• ICO Acute Hospital Services (Appendix 2):  Activity information has been received from 
SRFT relating to April to May 2019.  These services are forecast to over perform by 
£0.2m on adult services in 2019/20.  

Page 11



  

8

• ICO Community Services (Appendix 3):  These services are currently forecast to 
underspend by £0.3m in 2019/20.  District Nursing is expected to underspend by £0.1m 
due to vacancies within the current staffing model.  Anti-coagulant continues the pattern 
from 2018/19 in a reduction in costs due to changes in medication resulting in fewer 
clinics required to be attended by patients.

• Non ICO Services (Appendix 4):  These services are forecast to overspend by £1.0m in 
2019/20.  This year there are more services within this area due to the expansion of the 
integrated fund for 2019/20.  The main over performance is due to acute medical 
services of the hospital contracts.  This is offset by the underspend expected within 
Continuing Health Care (CHC) placements based on the latest client list.

• Aligned Services (Appendix 5):  These service are new to reporting for 2019/20 and 
relate solely to CCG budgets.  The acute surgical services are forecast to overspend by 
£0.2m across all hospital providers for surgical activity.

• Committed Developments (Appendix 6):  Currently £0.8m of the Improved Better Care 
Fund (iBCF) monies remains in reserves.  The national living wage reserve and the 
remainder of the iBCF monies has been transferred into The Integrated Care 
Organisation (ICO) contract. The uncommitted reserve has been released to offset the 
overall pool position.

4. ADULT SOCIAL CARE (ASC) FINANCE & PERFORMANCE GROUP

This is a newly formed group merging the ASC activity working group with the performance 
working group.  Membership of these groups almost mirrored each other and tended to 
focus on the same areas for scrutiny.  This new group meets every month with the last 
meeting being in June 2019.  The groups current focus is in understanding Residential / 
Nursing care spend over the last 3 years where the group has agreed on a dataset which 
has the necessary granularity to look at trends and reasons for changes over time.  The 
group will investigate: 

• The split of standard / non-standard prices including the processes for agreeing non-
standard

• Any changes with the average admission age since the inception of the ICO
• Understanding the place of residence before a permanent placement.
• Placements that are outside Salford to determine if there are any gaps in provision 

within Salford. This will also highlight placements that are outside of Greater 
Manchester and try to establish the reasons for this such as choice or need.

Findings from the group and recommendations will be reported back to the contract meeting 
and Service and Finance Group (SFG) in due course.

The group also ensures that the agreed recommendations for LD services are completed.

Page 12



  

9

5. BETTER CARE FUND

The submission of quarterly monitoring reports continues to be a national condition for the 
Better Care Fund (BCF) and the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF).  For 2018/19 the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government and NHS England have agreed to 
the merging of iBCF and BCF reporting; reporting, therefore, requires completion of one 
combined template per quarter. All reports for 2018/19 have been submitted in accordance 
with submission deadlines. ACC has previously delegated responsibility to approve 
submissions to the Director for People, Salford City Council and the CCG’s Chief 
Accountable Officer. We are still awaiting confirmation of the reporting requirements for 
2019/20.

Performance information has been received up to April 2019. There continues to be issues 
in receiving timely information for certain performance measures that haven’t yet been 
resolved for 2019/20 reports.  Table 2 below highlights those areas for consideration by 
ACC.  

Table 2: iBCF Exception Measures
Ind.Ref. Threshold

Reporting 
Frequency Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19

ibcf1 59.0% Monthly 47.0% 60.9% 51.9% 56.9% 56.3% 49.0% 46.3%

OT 388 210 200 199 113 61 50

CAO 97 179 134 108 129 181 138

TOTAL 485 389 334 307 242 242 188
OT 26 18 21 16 13 10 9

CAO 8 12 11 13 7 9 8

Weighted Avg 22 15 17 15 10 9 8

ibcf7 317 Monthly 282 304 223 288 267 277 274

ibcf10 3.5 Monthly 4.0 1.0 3.4 3.5 5.8 3.9

ibcf11 22.0% Monthly 19.8% 10.9% 21.5% 23.1% 12.2% 12.3% 15.2%

230 Monthly

Indicator Description

Centre of Contact referral to contact assessment completed (0-2 
days)  

ibcf2
Total number of people waiting for OT 
assessment

ibcf3 OT assessment waiting time (IN WEEKS) 13 Monthly

Total number of Carers Assessments (LOCAL KPI MEASURE - 
5C(1) & 5C(2))

Delayed transfers of care from hospital, and those which are 
attributable to adult social care (days in the month) reporting 1 
month in arrears  (ASCOF MEASURE - 2C(1) & 2C(2)

Hospital activity referral to contact assessment completed (0-2 
days)  

Overall there are 25 iBCF performance measures with 4 areas being below the standard as 
follows:.

• iBCF1:  Centre of Contact Referrals: has seen performance worsen since an 
improvement back in November 2018.  The team has been impacted by long term 
sickness which impacted on the team’s ability to complete contact assessments within the 
2 day window.

• iBCF7:  Carers Assessments: performance has not achieved target since June 2018. 
There continues to be issues in capturing mental health data and this is a factor in the 
reported performance, work continues to be ongoing in resolving the reporting issues by 
the provider. There is also reference to assessments at year end being less of a priority 
due to the yearend close of budgets by the provider. This is a concern for commissioners 
as financial yearend closedown shouldn’t impact on core operational actions.

Page 13



  

10

• iBCF10:  Delayed Transfers of Care: there has been a steady decline in performance 
however the service advised this was due to 2 clients that are on the waiting list for their 
preferred placements since December 2018, the families of the clients have refused to 
discharge the clients into interim placements to await placement choice.  At the time of 
writing this report both clients have still not been placed in either interim or their preferred 
choice placement.

• iBCF11:  There has been a rapid decline in performance over the last 3 months in this 
area.  The acuity of patients is affecting performance as currently the contact assessment 
doesn’t have a mandatory field to declare patients medically fit for assessment or 
discharge resulting in the assessment not being completed within the target.

Performance has improved significantly in the following areas: 

• iBCF2 & iBCF3: Occupational Therapy (OT) waiting lists and waiting times: performance 
has improved significantly since additional investment in the services.  The number of 
people waiting for an assessment and the average waiting times are all better than the 
stretch targets that were set for the service. 

In relation to financial performance on iBCF, 2019/20 is the final year of iBCF funding.  All 
funding has been transferred into the ASC contract with the exception of £0.8m relating to 
zero hours contracts.

6. TRANSFORMATION

Transformation Schemes funded from the Salford Transformation Fund test new models of 
care and are all predicted an impact on reducing activity for one or more of the four 
measures within the GM Investment Agreement (GMIA); A&E attendances, non-elective 
admissions, elective admissions and/or outpatient attendances. Cumulatively these 
predicted activity reductions, if all of them were achieved, would equate to £8.7m reduction 
in hospital spend.  However, if all of the schemes are evaluated and require recurrent 
funding, the new, additional cost would be over £6m- resulting in a net recurrent saving of 
between £2m to £3m by 2020/21.  These are estimates at this stage.  The impact of the 
transformation schemes is being evaluated and overseen by the Adults’ Advisory Board 
(AAB).  The first formal evaluations- on those schemes that were due to impact on urgent 
care hospital admissions- are due in September 2019 and will be reported to the Adult’s 
Commissioning Committee in October 2019

7. Recommendations

ACC is asked to note the in year and forecast position of the adults’ services within the 
Integrated Fund for 2019/20.

Steve Dixon
Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Chief Accountable Officer, Salford CCG
28th June 2019

Page 14



  

11

Appendix 1 – ICO Adult Social Care 2019/20

Analysis of Adult Social Care By 
Client Group

YTD 
Budget

 YTD Actual
YTD 

Variance
Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Learning Disabilities £4,796 £5,135 £339 £28,779 £30,805 £2,027 £0 £2,027
Physical Disability £3,308 £4,083 £775 £19,848 £24,496 £4,648 £0 £4,648
Mental Health £1,755 £1,913 £158 £10,527 £11,506 £979 £0 £979
Older People £1,975 £2,228 £252 £11,852 £15,351 £3,500 £0 £3,500
Sensory £132 £128 -£5 £795 £764 -£30 £0 -£30
Other £2,046 £2,021 -£24 £12,273 £12,482 £209 £0 £209
Care Act £505 £377 -£128 £3,032 £2,309 -£722 £0 -£722
Support Services £288 £288 -£0 £1,728 £1,728 -£0 £0 -£0
Clinical Income £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
SRFT Contribution £801 -£99 -£900 £4,807 -£3,004 -£7,811 £0 -£7,811

TOTAL £15,607 £16,073 £467 £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £0 £2,800

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the Adult Social Care services that are managed by the ICO 
(Salford Royal) and totals £93.6m for 2019/20.

These services are forecast to overspend by around £6.0m in 2019/20 and highlights the 
over spend is within Learning Disabilities and Physical Disability (LD and Residential Care).  
However SRFT will pick-up £0.4m of this overspend directly leaving £5.6m to be applied to 
the risk share.  Therefore the pool is only recognising a £2.8m overspend in 2019/20.

The ASC finance and performance group is currently focusing on the Residential/Nursing 
care spend to understand the drivers in over performance in terms of volumes of clients, 
complexity of placements and underlying/growing demand in services.  

This group will report to the Service and Finance Group who will report their findings to ACC.

Page 15



Page 12 of 16

Appendix 2 – ICO Hospital Based Services (SRFT Acute) 2019/20
SALFORD CCG
Salford Royal ICO Pod
SLAM Data 2
Reporting Month 2

Reporting 
Month Plan 

(SLAM)

Adjusted 
Actual 

(Reporting 
Month)

Variance 
(Reporting 

Month)      
over / 

(under) 
performance

Annual Plan 
(SLAM)

Forecast 
Adjusted 

Actual

Forecast 
Variance  

over / 
(under) 

performance

% 
Performance 

to Annual 
Plan

Reporting 
Month Plan 

(SLAM)

Adjusted 
Actual 

(Reporting 
Month)

Variance 
(Reporting 

Month)      
over / 

(under) 
performance

Annual Plan 
(SLAM)

Forecast 
Adjusted 

Actual

Forecast 
Variance  

over / 
(under) 

performance

% 
Performance 

to Annual 
Plan

Reported 
Previously 

to ACC
Movement

% 
Movement

A&E 10,367 9,901 -466 62,543 59,731 -2,812 -4% £1,837,085 £1,792,769 -£44,316 £11,082,803 £10,816,000 -£266,803 -2% -£5,530 -£261,273 -2%
Unplanned Admissions 2,731 2,802 71 16,474 16,904 430 3% £6,180,294 £6,288,616 £108,322 £37,284,596 £37,937,000 £652,404 2% £2,216,776 -£1,564,372 -4%
Excess Bed Days 1,021 1,785 764 6,161 10,772 4,611 75% £260,288 £245,881 -£14,407 £1,571,194 £1,485,000 -£86,194 -5% -£232,457 £146,263 10%
Outpatients 12,202 14,300 2,098 74,203 86,953 12,750 17% £1,565,941 £1,635,337 £69,395 £9,525,564 £9,947,000 £421,436 4% £282,676 £138,760 1%
Daycase & Elective 1,516 1,592 76 9,224 9,688 464 5% £887,217 £848,978 -£38,238 £5,398,993 £5,166,000 -£232,993 -4% £661,253 -£894,246 -17%
All Other (PbR Excluded, non activity Services) 1,754 1,994 240 10,529 11,964 1,435 14% £3,262,242 £3,210,543 -£51,699 £19,095,254 £18,781,741 -£313,513 -2% £929,531 -£1,243,044 -7%
Grand Total 29,591 32,374 2,783 179,134 196,012 16,878 9% £13,993,067 £14,022,124 £29,057 £83,958,404 £84,132,741 £174,337 0% £3,852,249 -£3,677,912 -4%

Year To Date Month 2 Forecast Year End Variance (Price)

Point of Delivery

Activity Price Movement in Forecast
Year To Date Month 2 Forecast Year End

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows the hospital based services that are within scope of the ICO and the Pooled budget, all relating to Salford Royal. 

This table shows activity and spend by care setting (A&E department, unplanned admissions, planned admissions and outpatients).  The main 
areas where we are above the budget levels relates to Unplanned Admissions.  The activity forecast shows that unplanned admissions is 
forecast to be slightly higher than plan, however costs are higher than plan which indicates the complexity/acuity of patients being admitted is 
higher.

Outpatients shows over performance in the early months which relates to the hospital catching up on demand and aiming to reduce waiting 
times

P
age 16



Page 13 of 16

Appendix 3 – ICO Community Services (SRFT Community) 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement in 
Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
District Nursing £1,352 £1,352 £0 £8,113 £7,982 -£131 £0 -£131
Intermediate Care £1,171 £1,171 £0 £7,024 £7,024 £0 £0 £0
MSK £405 £384 -£20 £2,427 £2,402 -£25 £0 -£25
Podiatry £356 £356 -£0 £2,135 £2,134 -£0 £0 -£0
Other £136 £135 -£1 £815 £812 -£3 £0 -£3
Anticoagulation (Community) £153 £131 -£22 £919 £786 -£133 £0 -£133
Adult Audiology £137 £138 £0 £825 £827 £2 £0 £2
Palliative Care £119 £119 £0 £714 £714 £0 £0 £0
Cardiac Rehabilitation £108 £109 £0 £651 £653 £3 £0 £3
Community Neuro Rehab £107 £112 £5 £640 £672 £32 £0 £32
Adult Diabetes £100 £106 £6 £601 £635 £33 £0 £33
Continence £96 £99 £3 £576 £592 £15 £0 £15
Centre of Contact £78 £78 £0 £470 £470 £0 £0 £0
Physiotherapy Adults £77 £77 £0 £460 £460 £0 £0 £0
Early Supported Discharge - Stroke £60 £57 -£3 £362 £344 -£18 £0 -£18
Tissue Viability £58 £55 -£3 £350 £332 -£17 £0 -£17
Cardiology £47 £47 £0 £279 £279 £0 £0 £0
Community Dietetics £40 £39 -£2 £242 £233 -£9 £0 -£9
Physiotherapy - Hip & Knee £40 £30 -£10 £238 £179 -£59 £0 -£59
Dermatology £27 £26 -£1 £164 £156 -£8 £0 -£8
Osteoporosis £25 £25 £0 £152 £152 £0 £0 £0
Specialist Nursing £24 £24 £0 £143 £143 £0 £0 £0
Orthotics £23 £31 £8 £136 £185 £50 £0 £50
Smoking Cessation £22 £22 £0 £134 £134 £0 £0 £0
Community Geriatrian £21 £21 £0 £126 £126 £0 £0 £0
Pulmonary Rehab £21 £21 £0 £124 £124 £0 £0 £0
Adult Speech & Language Therapy £20 £20 £0 £121 £122 £1 £0 £1
Respiritory Medicine £12 £12 £0 £73 £73 £0 £0 £0

Total Community Services - ICO £4,836 £4,797 -£39 £29,013 £28,745 -£269 £0 -£269

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the adult community health services spend within the ICO 
contract, broken down by service.  Community services are forecasting to underspend by 
£0.3m in 2019/20, the main areas of note relate to under spends in Anticoagulation (£0.1m), 
District Nursing (£0.1m) and Physiotherapy Hip & Knee (£0.1m).

• Anticoagulation activity has reduced from last year again and this is a result of 
patients’ medication being switched.  This new medication requires fewer clinic 
attendances for on-going patient monitoring.  

• District Nursing underperformance is driven by vacancies within the staffing model.  
An additional 20 nurses are in post compared with 3 years ago as a result if 
investment from the pooled budget.  Current vacancies are being filled by agency 
staff.

Page 17



Page 14 of 16

Appendix 4 – Non-ICO Services 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Drug & Alcohol Contracts £618 £618 £0 £3,711 £3,711 £0 £0 £0
Sexual Health Contracts £416 £416 £0 £2,494 £2,474 -£20 £0 -£20
Health Improvement Service £196 £196 £0 £1,178 £1,178 £0 £0 £0
Healthy Living Centres £168 £168 £0 £1,007 £1,007 £0 £0 £0
Other - Public Health £4 £4 £0 £25 £25 £0 £0 £0

Total Public Health Contracts (Non-ICO) £1,402 £1,402 £0 £8,415 £8,395 -£20 £0 -£20

Mental Health Service - NHS £5,795 £5,795 £0 £34,770 £34,770 £0 £0 £0
Non Contracted Activity £438 £438 £0 £2,626 £2,626 £0 £0 £0
Six Degrees £251 £251 £0 £1,504 £1,504 £0 £0 £0
St Ann's £195 £195 £0 £1,168 £1,168 £0 £0 £0
Pendlebury House-Turning Point £144 £144 £0 £866 £866 £0 £0 £0
Community Services - NHS £136 £136 £0 £816 £816 £0 £0 £0
Prestwich Specialist Services £116 £116 £0 £697 £697 £0 £0 £0
Specialist Weight  Management £109 £109 £0 £653 £641 -£12 £0 -£12
Any Qualifed Provider (AQP) £96 £96 £0 £573 £573 £0 £0 £0
Age UK £90 £90 £0 £542 £542 £0 £0 £0
Community Assets £83 £83 £0 £500 £500 £0 £0 £0
START £75 £75 £0 £451 £451 £0 £0 £0
Carers' £63 £63 £0 £378 £378 £0 £0 £0
Mental Health Services - Specialist Services £53 £53 £0 £315 £315 £0 £0 £0
Citizens Advice Bureau £48 £48 £0 £289 £289 £0 £0 £0
Care Act £45 £45 £0 £268 £268 £0 £0 £0
Broomwell Healthwatch £32 £32 £0 £194 £196 £2 £0 £2
Practice Services Ltd £28 £28 £0 £167 £167 £0 £0 £0
Stroke Association £24 £24 £0 £143 £143 £0 £0 £0
Other £54 £54 -£0 £323 £322 -£2 £0 -£2

Total Block Contracts (Non-ICO) £7,874 £7,874 -£0 £47,244 £47,232 -£12 £0 -£12

Acute Services - NHS £3,459 £3,516 £57 £20,754 £21,098 £344 £0 £344
Acute Services - Private £475 £622 £147 £2,852 £3,654 £802 £0 £802
Continuing Care £724 £611 -£114 £4,345 £4,185 -£160 £0 -£160
Mental Health ISRs £637 £618 -£19 £3,822 £3,850 £28 £0 £28
DFG Capital Grant £514 £514 £0 £3,085 £3,085 £0 £0 £0
Funded Nursing Care £411 £386 -£25 £2,467 £2,434 -£33 £0 -£33
Community Equipment Services £265 £265 £0 £1,588 £1,588 £0 £0 £0
Maryfield Court £63 £63 £0 £376 £376 £0 £0 £0
Mental Health Assessments £14 £14 £0 £83 £83 £0 £0 £0
Patient Transport £5 £5 £0 £33 £33 £0 £0 £0

Total Activity Contracts (Non-ICO) £6,567 £6,613 £46 £39,405 £40,385 £980 £0 £980

Total - Non-ICO £15,844 £15,889 £45 £95,064 £96,012 £948 £0 £948

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of those commissioned services that are not part of the ICO 
contract.  There are new contracts within this relating to the expansion of the integrated fund 
for 2019/20.  Most of these contracts are on a block with only a small number activity based.  

These services are forecasting to overspend by £0.7m.  This is in relation to all Acute 
Medical Services across all providers for Salford patients.

Page 18



Page 15 of 16

Appendix 5 – Aligned Services 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Acute Services - NHS £11,540 £11,639 £98 £69,242 £69,832 £589 £0 £589
Acute Services - Private £1,614 £1,554 -£61 £9,687 £9,324 -£363 £0 -£363
Ambulance Services £1,711 £1,711 £0 £10,268 £10,268 £0 £0 £0
NHS 111 Service £127 £127 £0 £760 £760 £0 £0 £0
Termination Of Pregnancies £105 £105 £0 £628 £628 £0 £0 £0

Total Activity Contracts (Aligned) £15,097 £15,135 £38 £90,585 £90,811 £226 £0 £226

Total - Non-ICO £15,097 £15,135 £38 £90,585 £90,811 £226 £0 £226

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all the commissioned services that are within the Aligned element of 
the adult’s pooled budgets.  These are all CCG commissioned services but any over or 
underspend in these areas will be included within the risk share of the Integrated Fund.

All the overspend relates to the acute surgical services of the hospital contracts.

Page 19



Page 16 of 16

Appendix 6 – Committed Developments 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD 

Actual
YTD 

Variance
Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement in 
Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Contingency - ASC £0 £0 £0 £783 £783 £0 £0 £0
Contingency - Living Wage Reserve £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
Contingency - General £0 £0 £0 £1,447 £0 -£1,447 £0 -£1,447
Contingency - GM NR Complex Discharge Service £0 £0 £0 £33 £33 £0 £0 £0
Shared Care Records £0 £0 £0 £150 £150 £0 £0 £0
Unidentified Savings Target £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Total Committed Developments £0 £0 £0 £2,413 £966 -£1,447 £0 -£1,447

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows funding (budget) that has not yet been transferred into contracts.  This 
funding has not been transferred across to providers yet as these budgets are based on 
estimated financial values and will only transfer into contracts when the actual financial 
values have been agreed.

 “Contingency ASC” relates to the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF).  All funding relating to 
iBCF has been transferred into the ICO contract with the expectation of the funding relating 
to zero hours contracts at £0.8m.  This remains within committed developments until we fully 
understand the additional cost increase associated with removal of zero hour contracts. 

This year the pool has a general contingency that can be used to offset any overspend of the 
pool. This has been released already to cover overspend of the pool position.

Page 20



 

1

Adult Commissioning Committee

AGENDA ITEM NO 5

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

DATE OF MEETING 12 JUNE 2019

Report of: Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden

Date of Paper: July 10th 2019

Subject: Adult Commissioning Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

Judd Skelton 0161 212 5632
Harry Golby 0161 212 6161

Purpose of Paper:

This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments and progress.

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

2

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

This paper provides an overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and 
provision relating to adult health and care to 
ensure Adult Commissioning Committee are 
kept abreast of developments and progress.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

N/A

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 22



  

3

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought X
Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)

X

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 23



4

Adult Commissioning Report

1. Executive Summary

This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments.

Items in this month’s report include:

 An update on the new Intermediate Care Unit
 Assurance following the recent Panorama programme regarding people with 

learning disabilities in Whorlton Hall
 Further improvement in Salford Care Homes
 The development of a new Market Positon Statement for social care 
 Information regarding the move from Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards to the 

Liberty Protection Safeguards
 The visit of the Chief Social Worker to Salford 
 The business case approval of Start In Salford’s suicide prevention programme    
 The outcome of the Health Secretary’s review of commissioning of sexual health, 

health visiting and school nursing services.
 Information about a new programme being put in place to better manage demand in 

dermatology 
 The commandment of winter planning for Salford’s urgent care system 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 

2.1  Intermediate Care Unit

In 2018 the Integrated Care Joint Commissioning Committee (ICJC) approved the need for a 
new Intermediate Care Unit, with the preferred site being by the Stott Lane car park.  In June 
2019, planning permission was submitted and so a consultation and engagement exercise is 
now underway.  The opportunity is also being taken to consult on the new Acute Receiving 
Centre that is also going to be built on the SRFT main campus.  

The Intermediate Care Unit will be a two-storey building, providing 60 patient beds in both 
multi and single bed rooms. The proposal includes light-filled day rooms for patients and a 
therapy garden to promote wellbeing.

Stott Lane Car Park will continue to be used by hospital staff and visitors, with a loss of 7 
spaces required to accommodate the new building following an improved
overall layout. The new unit is expected to open in October 2020.

Artists images of the new Intermediate Care Unit are on the following page.   

Page 24



5

    

Page 25



6

2.2  Whorlton Hall & Transforming Care

In May 2019 the BBC’s Panorama produced a programme which identified significant abuse 
of adults with learning disabilities in Whorlton Hall private hospital, run by Cygnet.  No one 
from Salford has been placed at this service.  There are some people are currently living in 
Cygnet’s residential services.  Everyone in these services have been visited by the 
community learning disabilities team in response to the programme and the co-ordinators 
are satisfied that the people in these environments are receiving the safe/good care.  

The Transforming Care Programme for adults with learning disabilities was initiated as a 
result of a previous Panorama programme documenting serious abuse at Private Hospital 
Winterbourne View in 2011.

The main aims of the Transforming Care Programme were to improve health and care 
services so that people can live in communities, with the right support and in least restrictive 
forms of care, closer to their usual places of residence.  Improved community care should 
mean that fewer people will need to go into hospital for their care, so specialist inpatient 
wards could be decommissioned. This improved community care includes better access to 
mainstream services, so that local units are able to provide the right mental health and 
health care for people with learning disability, autism or both.
 
At the outset of the programme of work, 1st April 2016, Salford had 7 inpatients in CCG 
commissioned hospital beds, and 5 inpatients in secure beds commissioned by NHSE 
Specialised Commissioning.  Salford has achieved the target set for the end of the initial 
Transforming Care Programme (March 2019), and has already met the targets d exceeded 
this; meeting 2019/20 targets early on in 2019. The current position is 3 people in CCG 
beds, and 4 in NHSE commissioned beds and work is ongoing regarding the future 
repatriation of these complex service users.

2.3  Care Homes Improvement

The excellent progress regarding Care Home improvement continues.  The latest report for 
June sees only 14.6% of Salford Care Homes rated by the Care Quality Commission as 
Requires Improvement or Inadequate seeing Salford rated 50th out of 151 areas nationally.  
ACC will recall that at the outset of this improvement programme in January 2017 Salford 
had 62% of its homes rated as Requires Improvement or Inadequate and was rated 150th in 
the country.

In June, Kenyon Lodge and Laburnum Court moved from Requires Improvement to Good 
ratings. This is the first time that either home has had a rating of Good since the current 
system was introduced about 5 years ago. Both have had at least one period of being rated 
Inadequate. These homes have had extensive support from many of the services in the 
Quality Improvement Network 
These two results mean that Salford is now ranked third in GM for both the percentage of 
homes rated Requires Improvement or Inadequate, and for the percentage of our total beds 
that are in homes rated Requires Improvement or Inadequate.

During May we passed the mark of one year since a Salford Care Home last received a 
worse CQC rating than it had prior to inspection. 

Page 26



7

2.4  Adult Social Care Market Shaping – Strategic Review

Salford’s shared ambitions across our health and social care partnership creates a new set 
of requirements for our Adult Social Care Market to be transformational, efficient, effective, 
adaptable and demanding of service excellence for the benefit of the people of Salford.

Salford is currently reviewing its strategic approach to shaping and improving the Adult 
Social Care Market, which is a Care Act requirement.  We want to grow our strategic and 
operational relationships with our ASC provider sector, moving further towards a culture of 
cooperation and ethical service delivery, with a stronger emphasis on collaborative planning 
and joint work working.

Salford is working with consultant’s ARRC and together we have commenced a series of 
engagement activities with Social and Health Care professionals from Salford Care 
Organisation, Greater Manchester Mental Health and the VSCE sector, organisations who 
deliver services in Salford and those people who use services.

This work will run over the next few months and cover the follow aspects:

 Market Engagement: business, quality, demand
 Market Structure: supply, relationship
 Population demand characteristics: including self-funder context
 Stakeholder engagement
 Policy context
 Market shaping functions

2.5  Liberty Protection Safeguards

The Mental Capacity (Amendment) Bill, was approved by the Queen after completing its 
journey through Parliament at the end of April. The legislation will introduce a new model for 
authorising deprivations of liberty in care, called the Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS).

The LPS establishes a process for authorising arrangements enabling care or treatment 
which give rise to a deprivation of liberty within the meaning of Article 5(1) of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR), where the person lacks capacity to consent to the 
arrangements. It also provides for safeguards to be delivered to people subject to the 
scheme.

There are some significant differences between the current Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DOLS) and the LPS.  Notably, LPS applies from the age of 16 (DOLS is 18+).  
LPS also applies in all care settings not just hospital and care home as is the case with 
DOLS.  Also while with DOLS the Local Authority (LA)  is the only ‘supervisory body’, with 
LPS SRFT, GMMH, CCG and the LA will be the responsible bodies in Salford .

The transition from DOLS to LPS will be a significant piece of work in understanding the 
degree of organisational change, impact and cost along with the work required regarding 
training and communications.

Page 27

https://services.parliament.uk/Bills/2017-19/mentalcapacityamendment.html
https://www.communitycare.co.uk/2019/04/26/dols-replacement-bill-approved-parliament-liberty-protection-safeguards-due-come-force-2020/
https://www.communitycare.co.uk/2019/04/26/dols-replacement-bill-approved-parliament-liberty-protection-safeguards-due-come-force-2020/


8

Salford is well positioned to manage this transition as we have established, dedicated and 
effective approaches to managing DOLs and a multi agency LPS Steering Group has been 
established to oversee this transition

The draft Code of Practice will be published in ‘summer 2019’ and approved in ‘spring 2020’,   
with the implementation plan published by September 2019.  LPS comes into force 1st 
October 2020.

2.6. Chief Social Worker visits Salford

The Chief Social Worker, Lyn Romeo, is visiting Salford on July 8th.  Lyn will be attending the 
Salford Social Work Forum where she will address the Adult Social Work workforce and will 
then meet with Directors in SRFT and also with Charlotte Ramsden.   Lyn will also be 
attending the Leadership Forum and will do an introduction and talk for 15 minutes 
discussing the role of Chief Social Worker, achievements of the role, priorities going forward 
and what they mean for Salford and Strength's Based Working.

2.7  ‘Reach Out to End Suicide’ Business case approved

In 2018 Start in Salford were awarded innovation funding by Salford CCG to provide a range 
of arts based activities and campaigns entitled ‘Reach Out to End Suicide’, to support the 
strategic aims of the Salford Suicide Prevention Strategy. This included a large arts based 
engagement campaign (Sea of Hands of Support), a remembrance vigil, creative arts 
sessions for people who have experience thoughts of suicide and the ‘Builders Lunch’ which 
involves visiting construction sites with pizza to engage the construction workforce in 
discussions regarding mental wellbeing and suicide prevention. 

All of the completed programmes have evaluated highly, with excellent impact and a high 
reach across the Salford population– over 3000 conversations with members of the 
community were undertaken. Suicide Prevention has received an elevated platform following 
the campaign work and comments from local people, staff and senior leaders in Salford have 
echoed the positive impacts of the campaigns. 

Following this positive evaluation, Salford CCG has approved a business case for recurrent 
investment of £27, 200 to continue and progress this work. 

2.8  Commissioning of sexual health, school nursing and health visiting services

Secretary of State Matt Hancock has confirmed the outcome of his review of commissioning 
of sexual health, health visiting and school nursing services, announced in the NHS Long 
Term Plan. There is to be no change to the respective commissioning responsibilities of local 
government and the NHS. 

In terms of sexual health services, the government is encouraging every local area to adopt 
a co-commissioning model and to jointly prepare a local sexual health plan. For health 
visiting and school nursing, the commissioning responsibilities will remain with local 
government working increasingly closely with the NHS to ensure every child has the best 
possible start in life. 

Page 28



9

A sexual health task and finish group is being set up to consider the government’s 
recommendations on co commissioning and a joint plan for the city. A Salford plan will align 
to the outcome and recommendations of the Greater Manchester sexual health review 
expected in the Autumn.   

2.9  Dermatology Demand Management 

Hospital dermatology services across Greater Manchester face significant demand and 
capacity challenges – it is a specialty with significant waiting time issues.  During 2018/19 a 
demand management programme was developed across Greater Manchester, with Salford 
playing a key role as lead commissioner for the Greater Manchester dermatology service.  
The programme involves the development of the GM Decide training package (a decision 
making training programme for GPs) coupled with the provision of dermatoscopes to GP 
practices (to support the identification of benign skin lesions).  It is anticipated that by 
providing GPs with the kit and the skills to better diagnose and manage benign skin lesions, 
unnecessary referrals to hospital services can be avoided.  Local innovation funding has 
been added to the Greater Manchester offer of 9 scopes per locality and to date 31 GP’s 
have been trained, it is anticipated that the local programme will run for 12 months training 
with a full evaluation.   

The final aspect of the demand management programme involves the development of a 
Greater Manchester clinical pathway framework.  The framework defines what intervention 
can be delivered in different tiers of services. Six clinical pathways around the management 
of the top six dermatological conditions (Acne, Psoriasis, Eczema, Rosacea, Urticaria, and 
Actinic Keratosis) have been signed off by Greater Manchester Medicines Management 
Group  and have recently been published on their website.  Prescribing advice relating to the 
use of emollients is included within the pathways.

2.10  Winter Planning

Work has commenced to prepare the Urgent Care system for the winter.  A comprehensive 
review of winter 2018/19 was presented to the June meeting of the Urgent & Emergency 
Care Delivery Board in order to learn lessons and make recommendations for winter 
2019/20.  Following discussion a small working group, with senior provider and 
commissioner representation, has been established to begin to outline the plan for winter 
2019/20.

3. Recommendations

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 

Judd Skelton (Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning) & Harry Golby (Assistant 
Director of Commissioning)  

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1

ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM NO 6

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information  

DATE OF MEETING 10th JULY 2019

Report of: Karen Proctor
Director of Commissioning
Salford CCG

Date of Paper: 25th June 2019

Subject: Integrated Care Transformation 
Programme Report 

In case of query 
Please contact:

Karen Proctor 
0161 212 5654

Purpose of Paper:

The paper provides a progress update for the Salford Together Integrated Care 
Transformation Programme for Adults for the reporting month MAY 19.  It provides an 
update on:

 The performance of the transformation plans and schemes for the adult 
population of Salford. This is a highlight report providing a monthly update on the 
activity of tests of change projects.   

 Programme risks and mitigating actions. 

Projects are overall on track with plans with the exception of the Urgent Care Team, 
where the planned activity for the pilot is not met.  

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 

2

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

The Integrated Care transformation 
programme seeks to contribute to Salfords 
Locality Plan aspirations and changing the 
health and social care system through 
promoting greater independence for adults 
and delivering more integrated care. It has a 
triple aim of: (1) delivering better care 
outcomes, (2) improving the experience of 
service users and carers, and (3) reducing 
care costs.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

A risks log is included in the paper with 
mitigations. 

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

Equality-related risks are assessed at 
individual workstream/business case level.

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

Health and social care services for 
adults included in the integrated fund.

Footnote:

Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 32



  

3

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

 Public engagement is 
embedded into workstreams 
as a whole

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)

 Via workstreams & at 
project specific level

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 

 Via workstreams & at 
project specific level

Legal Advice Sought 

Presented to the XXX
 Transformation update is 

presented to Adults Advisory 
Board each month

Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)

A range of partnership groups 
receive the report on a monthly 
basis for information purposes

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 33



4

Integrated Care Transformation Programme Report 

1. Executive Summary

The paper provides a progress update for the Salford Together Integrated Care 
Transformation Programme for Adults for the reporting month MAY 19.  It provides an 
update on:

a. The performance of the transformation plans and schemes for the adult 
population of Salford. This is a highlight report providing a monthly update 
on the activity of tests of change projects.  

b. Programme risks and mitigating actions. 

Projects are overall on track with plans with the exception of the Urgent Care Team, where 
the planned activity for the pilot is not met. 
 

1. Introduction

1.1 Progress with Integrated Care transformation is reported in appendix one. A 
transformation programme update has previously been provided to ICJC on a rolling 
basis as part of the previous Service and Financial Plan reporting schedule.  A 
transformation update will continue to be provided to ACC bimonthly and where ACC 
require further information a deep dive session can be arranged at a future ACC 
meeting.

1.2 The Integrated Care transformation priorities were agreed by the Integrated Care 
Advisory Board (now Adults Advisory Board, AAB) in April 2017, as outlined below. This 
update references highlights of project progress within these priority areas.

Four Integrated Care Transformation Priorities agreed April 2017

 Neighbourhoods
Creation of a neighbourhood leadership and delivery model which includes 
accountability for performance, clinical governance and use of resources. The 
delivery model will focus on redesign of neighbourhoods, commencing with delivery 
of a Neighbourhood Enhanced Care Service/Team. The Enhanced Care Team is a 
multidisciplinary team that will provide a programme of tailored interventions to 
people who have complex health and social care needs for a period of up to 12 
weeks.

Page 34



5

 Extended Care
Creating a co-ordinated approach to extended care (home care, home safe, 
intermediate care, care homes) to support neighbourhood working. This will initially 
focus on introduction of a new City Wide Community Urgent Care Team. This team 
will respond to referrals from the ambulance service or GPs within two hours and 
support people to manage their urgent health need at home, where possible, thus 
reducing transfers to A&E.

 Long term conditions care pathway redesign
Long Term Conditions or high volume pathway redesign across community assets, 
adult social care, physical and mental health, initially focusing on areas identified by 
NHS Right Care (Falls, Musculoskeletal Conditions and Cardiology). This priority 
also includes enhanced support for carers.

 Sustainable Primary Care
Working with Salford Primary Care Together to further develop and transform 
Primary Care to support neighbourhood working. This includes extending access to 
primary care services, introducing acute home visiting, care navigation and a range 
of other primary care innovations.

2. Progress with transformation schemes

2.1 Activity is outlined in the appendix for nine transformation projects. Three projects have 
been completed to date; Back Pain Project, Advice and Guidance and Urgent Treatment 
Centre pilot. 

 The project for back pain community clinics ended on the 31st December 2018 
and the final evaluation report has been presented to AAB during April 2019. This 
project changed the setting of provision of clinics from hospital to community and 
there are no implications for future funding. The back pain project showed impact 
on diagnostics ordered and some potential impact on A&E attendances for back 
pain. As this project is completed and has transitioned into service provision it is 
no longer reported in the highlight report.

 Advice and Guidance refers to when GPs seek advice from hospital specialists 
regarding their patients care and treatment. The transformation project was a test 
of a process to systematically and consistently seek advice and guidance. It 
utilised an IT system to seek and receive advice that is already used by GP 
practices. The project achieved the target for roll out to specialties but did not 
reach the number of requests anticipated. More detail is within the appendix. The 
evaluation is due to be reported to AAB on the 25th June 19. 

 The test of change for an Urgent Treatment Centre was completed on the 30th 
April 2019 and progress continues to be included in the highlight report, while 
options on the future are scoped. 

2.2 The two larger transformation projects, testing new ways of working, are the Urgent Care 
Team and the Enhanced Care Team, as described below. Both these schemes will 
report their 12 month evaluation in August 2019. The Urgent Care Team is not meeting 
activity as planned. 

Page 35



6

 The 18 month test of a city wide Community Urgent Care Team (UCT) is ongoing 
with referrals averaging just above 200 per month. Communications and 
approaches to support increasing referrals are continuing with a particular focus 
on increasing GP referrals to the team, reduce those directed to A&E, who could 
be managed at home by the Urgent Care team. 

 The Enhanced Care Team (ECT) is a pilot to provide a 12 week multi-disciplinary 
tailored intervention for people with complex health and social care needs. In 
addition to working with Swinton and Eccles, Irlam and Cadishead, the ECT was 
rolled out to Walkden and Little Hulton neighbourhood in April 2019, initially 
commencing with two GP practices in that neighbourhood and plans are now in 
place to roll out further in this neighbourhood. 

2.3 A transformation priority is neighbourhood development. ICJC received a presentation 
on Health and Care Integrated Care Neighbourhood development in October 2018. This 
outlined plans to form five integrated health and care neighbourhood leadership teams 
for adults health and social care, in order to develop integrated working for these 
services in neighbourhoods. These leadership teams include representation from 
primary care, community nursing, mental health, social work, therapists and VCSE 
sector. The teams have commenced a leadership development programme and 
identified an improvement project to work together on over the next 8 months. Links are 
actively being made with Council neighbourhood work through regular meetings to share 
plans. Neighbourhood sharing events provide opportunities to facilitate sharing of plans 
and also learning. The next Integrated Care neighbourhoods sharing event is planned for 
the 16th October 2019. Council leads are members of the Neighbourhoods Integrated 
Care Steering Group. 

2.4 AAB have commenced a review process to support ACC in planning for post 
transformation. Transformation projects have been grouped alongside inter-related core 
commissioned services into three review bundles. For each bundle a task and finish 
group has been convened to review need and service provision alongside evaluation 
findings. Progress has been made with mapping pathways and relationships for the 
services within the bundles.  The bundles reflect transformation priorities and are:

• Urgent Care
• Extended care (community step up services and hospital step down services)
• Neighbourhoods

 

3. Recommendations

3.1    The ACC is recommended to:

Note the update on the Salford Integrated Care Transformation Programme for 
Adults 

Karen Proctor
Director of Commissioning NHS Salford CCG

Page 36



7

INTEGRATED CARE TRANSFORMATION REPORT 
Chair of Salford ICO Author: June.Roberts@SRFT.nhs.uk 
May 2019 Report 

Number 46 Progress 
(RAG)

This May highlight report continues a format to focus on activity for transformation tests of 
change. 

On track with plan
  Not on track with plan but recovery anticipated in next three months

Key:

Not on track and recovery is not anticipated in next three months

1. Urgent Care Team (UCT):
A pilot of multidisciplinary team which aims to support people with an urgent health or care need in their own 
home responding within 2hours of referral and providing support for up to 72 hours. Commenced receiving 
referrals from Ambulance Service on 16th May 2018. 
Activity month plan Activity Actual Rapid cycle evaluation due:
Refer Seen Refer Seen 3 month 6 month 9 month

N/A 888 234 231 Complete Complete Complete

Comment on progress /risks/ recovery: 
Referral numbers in May have increased slightly 
again from last month. 

GP referrals continue to be lower than expected. 
Meetings with targeted practices are on-going and 
will continue during June. Team leads have taken 
responsibility for ensuring communications are 
consistent and continuous. Fortnightly meetings 
are in place to follow up on progress and share 
ideas. 

Work continues to implement Manchester Triage 
System, to allow for a more consistent and efficient 
triage process that can be conducted by senior 
nurses. Pathways are in development for COPD, 
heart failure and cellulitis. A community DVT 
pathway is being explored. 

As part of the extended care bundle, work is 
underway to plan and understand the resources 
needed to deliver this service sustainably and 
where the benefits will be achieved. A test of 

Monthly UCT patients

Total referrals received 
Total accepted

234
231

Page 37

mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk
mailto:June.Roberts@srft.nhs.uk


8

change has been proposed in ED to implement a 
community in reach model which, if successful, 
should further inform demand and capacity 
planning.

 Advice given
 See and treat
 Hear and treat
 Declined 

40
131
56
3

2. Enhanced Care Team (ECT)
The ECT is a multidisciplinary team who provide a programme of tailored interventions to people with complex 
health and social care issues at increasing risk of decline/ deterioration for up to 12 weeks (Test of Change in 
two NBHs)
Activity month plan 
(caseload) 

Activity Actual
(caseload)

Rapid cycle evaluation due:

3 month 6 month 9 month
100

96 including Walkden and 
Little Hulton Complete Complete Complete

Comment on progress /risks/ recovery: 
As of the 31/05/19 the total active caseload for 
Swinton was 59 which is 19 above the target agreed 
in the PIID of 40

Eccles and Irlam caseload as of 31/05/19 was 17 
which is 43 below the target agreed in the PIID of 60. 
However, it was expected that the numbers in Eccles 
and Irlam would reduce temporarily whilst referrals 
from some Vision practices were suspended. It is 
expected numbers will increase as Walkden EMIS 
practices come on line.

Total active caseload in Walkden at April is 12; a 
target for the total number of patients to be seen in 
Walkden in 8 months has been set at 152.

The Limes and Cleggs Lane medical practice have 
both been signed up in May with the team awaiting 
system log-ins prior to receiving referrals. Further 
meetings are set up in June for Dearden and 
Ellenbrook practices.

Referrals in to the service have decreased slightly 
compared to the previous month however patients 
identified through the risk strat tool are now being 
booked into clinics. 

9 month evaluation presented to AAB in May.

Work continues across both teams to streamline the 
operational processes and bring the ECT teams 

Total number of patients on Swinton caseload 
per month

Total number of patients on Eccles and Irlam 
caseload per month

Total number of referrals received across 
Swinton and Eccles & Irlam and Walkden and 
Little Hulton

 

Page 38



9

closer together.

3. Falls pathway:  
Redesign of the falls pathway introducing a single point of entry and enhancing prevention activities.

Activity  month plan Activity Actual Rapid cycle evaluation due:
Refer Refer 3 month 6 month 9 month

296 - HI271 –HI 
(project increase was 21)

71-LI
(project increase was 46)

33 - LI
Complete Complete Complete

Comment on progress /risks/ recovery: 
Community rehab referrals continue to be above 
target. Low intensity SCL preventative 
intervention numbers remain below target but 
consistent.

The number of falls in 2018/19 has decreased 
compared to the previous year. There has been 
7% reduction in rate per 100,100 compared to 
2017/18 and a 9% reduction in rate compared to 
2015/16.     

Staff contracts in community rehab funded 
through transformation are due to end 
September 2019, allowing for the slight delay in 
recruitment at the start of the project. This will 
allow for a full evaluation and proposals for 
future sustainability to be linked to the extended 
care bundle. SCL contract is also extended to 
align with this time frame.

Twelve month evaluation to be brought to AAB in 
June.
HI = High intensity intervention (Community 
Rehab)
LI = Low intensity intervention (Postural Stability
#NOF = Fracture neck of femur

 

Page 39



10

Emergency admissions for injuries due to falls Salford 65+ (Apr 15 – Mar 19)
Year Number 

of falls 
Rate per 
100,000
population

% rate 
change
from 
previous 
year

% rate 
change
from 
2015/16

Number 
of #NOF

% 
change 
from 
previous 
year

Rate per 
100,000 
population

% 
change 
from 
previous 
year

2015/16 1162 3,289 250 678
2016/17 1051 2,938 -11% -11% 243 -2% 675.5 -0.3%
2017/18 1159 3,211 9% -2% 264 8% 746.3 10.5%
2018/19 1085 2,992 -7% -9% 260 -1.5% 716.4 -4%
data source: SUS

4. Urgent Treatment Centre:
This project aimed to deliver an extended test of change of a model for an Urgent Treatment Centre between 
3.12.18 and 30.04.2019. Urgent Treatment Centres are a national requirement to be in place by December 
2019. 

The Urgent Care Treatment Centre pilot 
commenced in December 2018 and finished on 
the 30th April 2019. The aim was to test a model 
of delivering the urgent treatment centre, 
including blended workforce and adapted triage. 
The UCTC included minors and previous GP 
Streaming.

Evaluation of the impact on urgent care 
performance is completed and an option 
appraisal was presented to AAB in April 19 based 
on the evaluation information.  It was agreed 
that the Urgent Care redesign group needed to 
plan a wider system model with a proposal to 
AAB in July 2019.  While this proposal is 
developed the UTC pilot has closed, however a 
GP will continue to work in ED to maintain the 
Primary Care input and numbers seen in ED to 
end of July. 

5. Enhanced carers service:  
Provision of an enhanced carer support package for patients identified in a hospital setting to support post 
discharge. 

Activity 12 month 
plan 

Activity cumulative 16 
month

Evaluation plan

Referred Seen Referred Seen 21 month 24 month 27 month

Page 40



11

120 N/A 234 135 2nd July 19
Comment on progress /risks/ recovery:
 
Sept 17 to May 19 activity was 250 referred and 
144 seen.  There were no new referrals accepted 
in January and February 19 (although follow-up 
and provision of intervention continued). During 
May there were 16 referrals with carers star 
assessments, with 7 accepting the offer of the 
enhanced service. 

The evaluation of the first quarter (March – May 
19) since the service was extended to additional 
wards will be reported in July.    

Communications continue regarding the service 
being extended to additional wards as referrals 
have not yet increased to the degree anticipated. 
There is on-going work to find suitable office 
space for the team. 

6. Advice and Guidance
Testing of E-RS system as a method of consultant hospital specialists providing timely advice and guidance to 
GPs. 

Activity Plan Activity Actual Evaluation Plan
75% specialties 
engaged

78.2% 6 month 
completed

9 month 
completed

Final 12 month 
evaluation report in 
progress

Comment on progress /risks/ recovery:

There is no change to the update within 
the last (April) highlight report as the 
project has now closed. The final 
evaluation report of the project will be 
presented in June as the transformation 
test ended at 31st March 19. 

While advice and guidance has not met 
outcomes targets in respect of reductions 
in outpatient first appointments nor 
reductions in outpatient follow up 
appointments, feedback received from 
primary care has been positive and (in 
cardiology) only a small proportion of the 
requests received are resulting in an 
outpatients appointment being generated. 

Page 41



12

Further specialities are being supported to 
use advice and guidance. Awareness 
raising continues with primary care and to 
engage with GPs who are not using it. The 
evaluation has found training, access to 
smartcards and smartcard readers as 
barriers to increased use. 

7. Centre of Contact 
To strengthen and develop the Centre of Contact through test of an MDT triage team, implementation of a 
team training programme and line management with responsibility to develop the service.  

Activity plan Activity Actual Evaluation plan

3 month 6 month 9 monthScreening 
Officer 
training 
progress

50% 

Screening 
officer 
training 
progress

49% perm 
staff
100% 
temp staff

Complete 20/09/2019 30/10/2019

Comment on progress /risks/ recovery: 

Training of permanent ‘screening officers’ is 
ongoing and is on track. 

At May 2019 the call handling staff have all 
moved to the same job description and terms 
and conditions. This supports integration and 
the project aims, as there is consistency in 
role; the staff are all now band 3 Screening 
Officers. 

Further work is being undertaken to ensure 
outcome data for the project and service is 
meaningful and collected consistently. Further 
working is also being undertaken to ensure 
information and advice is being recorded 

Page 42



13

effectively. 

The call queue time for district nursing has 
increased slightly in the last quarter, although 
remaining within normal variation. Whilst 
queue times overall appear to be on a 
downward trajectory. The reasons for this are 
being explored.

The centre of contact may be changing 
location during 2019/20. A risk assessment of 
any impact on the service and also project will 
be completed when timescales and plans are 
confirmed.

8. Health and Social Care Neighbourhoods:  
Integration of health and social care teams plus establishment of five neighbourhood health and care 
leadership teams to take forward neighbourhood planning and integrated working. 

Comment on progress /risks/ recovery: 

During May the neighbourhood leadership teams 
met to develop a project proposal to help 
improve the priority areas identified through 
workshops and through their meetings Jan to 
April 2019. 

In June and July AQUA will deliver leadership 
development sessions for the core teams and 
project plans will be further developed. 

The invitation for the next wider neighbourhood 
sharing meeting has been shared; it is the 19th 
October 19. 

An update on the Mental Health in 
Neighbourhoods project is scheduled at AAB in 
June. The mental health neighbourhood project 
staff have met with 8 practices (and further 
meetings are planned). The project is aiming to 
improving physical health checks for people on 
SMI registers.  

The priorities are: 

Broughton priority: Self-neglect - Understand 
and explore self-neglect and service responses 
to it. 
Eccles and Irlam priority: ‘Nurturing 
Networks’ Understanding services –  creating 
and maintaining a list of service contacts
Ordsall and Claremeont priority: Improve 
integrated working using new approaches –
strength based approaches and social 
prescribing, with a focus on high intensity 
users.
Swinton priorities: Respiratory and fuel-
poverty – connecting vulnerable people to 
grants and exploring the link between fuel 
poverty and respiratory conditions 
Walkden and Little Hulton priorities: 
Self-neglect and development and utilisation 
of an integrated space in the precinct. 

Page 43



14

9. Housing Officer  
Pilot of a dedicated specialist Housing Post within the Integrated Discharge Team to support patients who have 
identified housing needs while in hospital which may be impacting on discharge. 

 LGA figures for the number of days Delayed 
Transfers of Care from SRFT, due to housing 
issues, rose in February to 16 and to 38 in 
March. 

Investigation of the increase finds that the 
increase maybe due to two complex patients 
with a number of barriers to discharge including 
housing. There has also been a change in data 
collection nationally which may have impacted. 

The housing officer’s referrals showed a 
decrease in February and March. The figures 
are small – and some of the changes may be 
explained by the housing officer taking annual 
leave in March. In April, referrals increased to 
30.

With small numbers and variability in data, it 
has not yet been possible to identify 
readmission rates for people who have a 
housing issue. 

As requested by AAB, a piece of work to 
understand the housing offer to patients at 
Meadowbrook has commenced and to look for 
opportunities to work together more 
effectively.  

10. Enablers:  
a. Communications and Engagement

Page 44



15

A communications and engagement approach for the neighbourhoods work for both staff and 
citizens will commence with social media around the priorities and updated to the Salford Together 
website. Summaries of the neighbourhoods events from April are available on the Salford Together 
web-site . Healthwatch annual priorities survey has now closed and results are expected to provide 
insight at neighbourhood level.  Healthwatch have commenced collecting service user feedback and 
completed interviews for the Falls project, ECT and Urgent Care Team during May. 
Salford Together Communications and Engagement Lead will be facilitating production of an 
stakeholder brochure outlining progress with the programme, with estimated publication for Sept.

a. Workforce:  HR, Organisational Development(OD) and staff communications. 
There is ongoing regular Workforce and Comms Group chaired by SRO for Workforce to deliver the 
workforce strategy and key priorities. The group is overseeing recruitment and on-boarding into 
new teams, succession planning, change-management and staff engagement.  A detailed OD plan 
has been developed and is being implemented. A new system wide workforce group is also 
established with senior representation from all partners.   Development of Strengths Based 
approaches work will be reported going forward.

b. Estates
Work continues to establish the estates requirements of new neighbourhood teams, and feed into 
Estates Strategy led by the Strategic Estates Group (SEG). An audit of room utilisation was 
completed in April in order to support planning for available clinic spaces for new models of care. 
Space is identified for the Enhanced Care Team to run clinics in Walkden. Information regarding 
workforce and estates for Integrated Teams continues to be reviewed and an action plan is in 
development. Proposals are being considered to move teams in the Civic Centre and Sandringham 
to City Approach Eccles.

c. Digital 
The Digital Board for the Integration Programme is overseeing the IM&T elements of the 
programme and planning for the future needs of the community based services. An Integrated Care 
Digital Strategy is in draft format.  A paper describing the barriers with Primary Care IT for the 
Enhanced Care Team and other community projects has been prepared for Provider Board and AAB. 
A draft population health digital strategy has been considered by Provider Board and AAB and will 
be developed further for August.  The Local Health Care Records Exemplar project (LHCRE) is being 
piloted in Salford with records for dementia and frailty. Regular updates will be provided to AAB. 
Contact with GP Practices in Swinton and Eccles has been made to explore these neighbourhoods 
supporting the pilot of LHCRE. 

d. VCSE - Update from Salford Together Partnerships Lead. 
The Partnership Lead attended the Urgent and Unscheduled Care Redesign Group, the Extended 
Care Steering Group and the Strength Based Approaches Programme Board meetings in May, as well 
as contributing to the Adults Advisory Board.

Greater Manchester Population Health Sub-group.
The Partnership Lead took part in a round table discussion on the GM Social Care and Heath 
‘Population Health in GM and the partnership with the VCSE Sector’. The draft of the Population 
Health white paper with leaders from across the VCSE sector in GM was discussed with a ‘sense 
check’ whether the paper had appropriately describes and included how the VCSE Sector is a core 

Page 45



16

partner in the delivery of the Population Health Plan. A number of suggestions were made for 
strengthening the role for the VCSE sectors in the delivery plans.

Neighbourhood Leadership
VCSE Vocal and Anchor Organisation representation on the Neighbourhood Leadership Groups and 
the leadership development project has been agreed for 4 out of the five neighbourhoods.  The 
Partnership lead completed the AQuA ‘Action Learning’ training alongside colleagues from across 
the Salford Together partnership. 

VCSE VOICES (VOCAL) 
The Partnership Lead chaired the quarterly VCSE VOCAL Health and Wellbeing representatives 
meeting in May at which reps feedback from strategic meetings attended, these include the 
Neighbourhood Boards and Adults Advisory Board. The representatives also prioritised the focus of 
the VOCAL Health and Wellbeing Forum events for  2019/20.

Partnership development
The Partnership Lead has been co-opted on to the Salford Carers Strategy Steering group and this 
met twice in May to develop the final draft of the Strategy ahead of presentation to Adults Advisory, 
0- 25 Advisory and the Health and Care Commissioning Boards. The role on the steering group is to 
ensure that the VCSE sector influences and is actively engaged in the work to deliver the strategy.

The Partnership Lead continued to be involved with the Tobacco Harms task and finish group for 
Salford. The CVS will be surveying the VCSE sector to identify whether organisations had Smokefree 
policies and whether there is a need to support them to develop them. 

In May the Chief Exec of Salford CVS and the Partnership Lead met with the Chair of SPCT to discuss 
future working together.

The Partnership Lead facilitated a VCSE Sector focus group on the new Greater Manchester Cancer 
Screening Awareness programme; which has been commissioned by GMSCHP from a consortium of 
VCSE organisations including Salford CVS. The purpose of the group was to ensure that Salford 
organisations are able to influence the work of the programme in the City. 

Initial conversations took place with the Local Medical Council and colleagues from SPCT to explore 
how Salford CVS may engage with the Primary Care Networks to ensure that they are aware of and 
working with Well Being Matters in the development of the ‘social prescribing link worker roles’.

Student Placements
The Partnership Lead organised and facilitated a ‘Lunch and Learn’ session for VCSE organisations 
that focussed on the SPCT student placement scheme for post qualified nurses converting to 
working Primary Care and final year students. SPCT, presented the placement opportunities to 8 
VCSE organisations who all have expressed an interest in offering student placements; a further 4 
groups have also said that they will potentially offer placements.

Page 46



17Page 47



18

11. Programme wide /strategic risks
Risks updated April 2019.  

Key Risks: Mitigation: Risk 
Rating

If ICO transformation plans do not 
deliver the anticipated outcomes, this 
will affect delivery of the Locality Plan 
and not realise the financial and 
activity reduction.

- Detailed transformation plans have 
been developed and the transaction of 
these is being managed through the 
ACS Provider Board and ICAB.

- Emerging evaluation findings and 
benefit opportunity are reviewed by 
ACS Provider Board and ICAB 

10

If there is a lack of coordinated 
system-wide operational & delivery 
IMT planning to support integration of 
services across the care system, 
covering physical, mental health and 
social care then we will not achieve 
outcomes set out in the locality plan 

- IM&T resources have been identified, 
allocated and are operational to 
support the integrated care 
transformation projects.

- Integrated Care Digital Sub Group with 
senior Salford system leadership in 
place since August 17 with escalation 
via ACSPB and ICAB. 

- Population health strategy in 
development. Risk stratification tool 
being developed. Data sharing 
agreements in place to support 
integrated working  

- Digital population health strategy in 
development 

- Primary Care IM&T interoperability 
ongoing

- Development of SIRC supporting 
system interoperability

- Development and testing of electronic 
health records for frailty and dementia 

- Feedthrough into EDHEC and Locality 
Implementation Board.

9

If we do not develop a strategic 
approach to estates for our new 
models of care for Neighbourhood's 
and City wide services, then we will 
limit the scope and benefit of 
integrated working and delivery of 
Locality plan targets

- Membership of operational estates 
group and Strategic estates group.

- Contribution to local asset review
- Estates lead SRO within Division 
- Scoping exercise for NBH working 

underway 
- Regular updates to Provider board and 

ICAB

9

If a workforce with adequate skills 
and retention is not recruited and 
retained then the implementation and 
integration of new models of care 
across health, physical, mental and 
social care will not be delivered or 
sustained. As projects approach 
funding end, workforce may reduce 

- Recruitment and retention strategy 
aligned to workforce planning 

- Significant investment in OD and L&D 
for new care model teams 

- Bundles service review process aiming 
to plan future models building on 
evaluation of tests of change alongside 
core commissioned services

9

Page 48



19

with risks to delivery and to safety.   
If Partners (SPCT, ICO, SCCG, 
SCC,GMMH,VCSE) are unable to 
work collaboratively on planning new 
models of care then this will affect 
delivery of the Locality Plan and not 
realise the financial and activity 
reduction.

- Established ACSPB
- Establishment of ICAB for strategic 

direction covering all partners.
- Close working relationships have been 

formed.
- Co design of priorities and developing 

models of care.
- The ICO leadership team co-located 

with the SPCT leadership team at City 
Approach, and joint appointments have 
been made. 

- Kings Fund OD session completed in 
May 17 for ICAB and a further self-
reflection exercise was completed in 
February 2018. 

- MOU and partnership collaboration 
agreement agreed with VCSE 

- Planning for new models of care post 
transformation commenced in 2019 
under auspices of ICAB 

8

If front line staff are not aware or do 
not utilise new models of care and 
pathways demonstration of proof of 
concept will be limited  

- Communications and engagement plan 
including all media and relevant 
meetings and awareness raising 
opportunities in place

- Evaluation information is informing 
targeted engagement

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1

ADULT’S COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM NO 7

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

DATE OF MEETING 10th JULY 2019

Report of: Senior Service Improvement Manager

Date of Paper: 10/07/2019

Subject: Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery 
Board Update

In case of query 
Please contact:

Stephen Tilley
Senior Service Improvement Manager
0161 212 5659

Purpose of Paper:
This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Urgent & Emergency 
Care.  

Adults’ Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment 
as appropriate.

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



 

2

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

The paper is for information only. 

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

The paper is for information only.

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

The paper is for information only.

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

The paper is for information only.

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

The paper is for information only.

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

The paper is for information only.

Footnote:

Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 52



  

3

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 

Legal Advice Sought 

Presented to the Adult’s Commissioning 
Committee

 To be presented 10th July 2019

Presented to the XXX
Presented to theIXXX
Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)



Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 53



4

Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery Board Update

1. Executive Summary

This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Urgent & Emergency Care 
as well as outlining performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards.

2. Emergency Department

2.1 Performance against the 4 hour 95% standard for Accident and Emergency (A&E) at 
Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) was below target in 2018/19 (approx. 83.59% 
unvalidated), this was a decline on 2017/18 performance (approx. 85.76%). 

2.2 SRFT saw a 1.4% increase in A&E attendances and a 2.3% increase in emergency 
admissions in 2018/19 against 2017/18.

2.3 SRFT continues to progress the urgent care improvement programme. The localities 
priorities for improving urgent care performance in 2019/20 and beyond can be 
grouped into the following areas: Leadership and culture, pre-hospital care, 
management of the ‘front door’ and management of the ‘back door’.

2.4 With pressure being felt right across GM A&E performance for Salford CCG patients 
attending any A&E is also estimated to have remained below the 95% standard, and 
was c.84.4% (unvalidated) for 2018/19.

2.5 The A&E deflection rate for quarter 4 2018/19 was approx. 2% equating to 504 
deflections in the quarter. The majority of deflections continue to be deflections to the 
onsite GP OOH service (average 80% in Q4) and 13% of patients were advised to 
self-care. Please see below a breakdown of deflections for 2018/19:

Page 54



5

2.6 In December 2018 the Trust began piloting an Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) model 
located within the emergency department. The UTC superseded the GP Streaming 
model which had been in place from September 2017. 

2.7 Various operating models for the UTC were trialled but none provided an appropriate 
return on investment from a financial or efficiency standpoint. The Trust is exploring 
alternative options to alleviate pressure within the A&E department. A paper should 
be taken to the Adult Advisory Board in July 2019. In addition to this work a Salford 
wide urgent care review has been initiated. This piece of work is still in its early 
stages and once a baseline review of data has been completed we will be in a better 
position to report recommendations.

3. NHS 111

3.1 Call answer performance in April 2019 for the North West footprint was below the KPI 
standards, 87.3% of calls were answered in 60 seconds against a target of 95%. This 
was however, an improvement from February where the average was 72.96%the 
previous month whilst answering c. 17,000 more calls. Average call pick up time for 
the month was 36 seconds, which is a vast improvement on February performance 
which was 1 minute and 46 seconds.

3.2 The CCG continues to monitor and feedback comments relating to quality to NHS 
Blackpool CCG who are the lead commissioner for the service.

 
3.3 Each NHS 111 service has to report on the following four Key Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):
• Calls answered (Target 95% in 60 seconds)
• Calls abandoned (Target <5%)
• Warm transfer (Target 75%)
• Call back in 10 minutes (Target 75%)

Page 55



6

• Clinical Intervention (Target 30%)

3.4 Performance for 18/19 was follows (March data is unavailable):

Actual 18/19

KPI Description Target Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

Calls abandoned <5% 6.19 6.71 7.96 11.89 8.11 7.76 9.33 8.36 6.28 7.9 6.9

Calls answered in 60 seconds 95% 77.83 74.54 71.15 63.96 70.13 70.26 69.11 72.65 78.53 73.5 72.96

Calls warm transferred 75% 22.2 21.38 23.65 25.91 22.39 24.13 24.89 27.41 30.61 37.09 38.37

Call backs within 10 minutes 75% 41.58 39.31 41.6 40.22 40.84 39.88 40.56 44.9 50.44 50.77 53.53

Clinical Intervention 50% 51.6 53.2 54.2 56.1 55.2 54.73 55.72 55.84 53.55 53.99 53.27

3.5 NHS 111 call activity from the Salford CCG population in 18/19 was follows:

Activity 18/19

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Salford - Calls 3995 4129 3625 3509 3477 3362 3691 3847 4508 4308 3915 4258

Ambulance Despatches 15% 14% 14% 15% 15% 16% 16% 17% 16% 17% 16% 15%

Attend A&E 9% 10% 11% 11% 10% 10% 9% 10% 8% 10% 9% 10%

Primary and community care 56% 55% 53% 53% 53% 55% 56% 53% 59% 56% 58% 58%

Recommended to Attend Other 
Service 2% 2% 2% 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 1% 1% 2%

Not Recommended to Attend Other 
Service 18% 19% 20% 19% 19% 17% 17% 18% 16% 16% 15% 15%

4. Emergency Ambulance Service

4.1 NWAS follow the national Ambulance Response Programme (ARP). The categories 
of ambulance call are as follows:

4.2 Category 1 - Time critical and life threatening events requiring immediate 
intervention, such as cardiac arrest or respiratory arrest; airway obstructions and 
ineffective breathing. NWAS aims to respond to these calls within an average time of 
7 minutes and at least 9 out of 10 times (90th percentile) within 15 minutes. 

4.3 Category 2 - Potentially serious conditions that may require rapid assessment, urgent 
on-scene clinical intervention/treatment and / or urgent transport. These conditions 
include probable heart attacks, strokes, and major burns. NWAS aims to respond to 

Page 56



7

these calls within an average time of 18 minutes and at least 9 out of 10 times within 
40 minutes. 

4.4 Category 3 - Urgent problem (not immediately life-threatening) that needs treatment 
to relieve suffering (e.g. pain control) and transport or assessment and management 
at scene with referral where needed within a clinically appropriate timeframe. These 
conditions include burns (not major); non-emergency late pregnancy/childbirth 
problems; uncomplicated diabetic hyper/hypoglycaemia; not immediately at risk drug 
overdoses; non-emergency injuries; abdominal pain. Mortality rates are very low or 
zero; there is evidence to support alternative pathways of care. NWAS aims to 
respond to these calls at least 9 out of 10 times within 120 minutes.

4.5 Category 4 - Problems that are not urgent but need assessment (face to face or 
telephone) and possibly transport within a clinically appropriate timeframe. NWAS 
aims to respond to these calls at least 9 out of 10 times within 180 minutes.

4.6 ARP performance for 2018/19 was as follows:

2018/19

Salford CCG APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

C1 Best Response Average 00:07:50 00:07:37 00:08:06 00:07:18 00:07:32 00:07:13

C1 90th Percentile 00:13:00 00:12:25 00:12:18 00:12:27 00:11:05 00:11:30

C2 Best Response Average 00:27:47 00:26:56 00:26:41 00:31:39 00:22:53 00:25:16

C2 90th Percentile 01:04:48 00:58:31 00:59:01 01:11:22 00:49:29 00:53:50

C3 90th Percentile 03:26:46 04:03:26 03:50:34 04:50:25 03:31:25 04:21:39

C4 90th Percentile 03:38:06 03:21:15 03:28:49 05:49:11 03:06:34 04:02:05

Salford CCG OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR TOTAL

C1 Best Response Average 00:07:43 00:07:21 00:07:10 00:07:24 00:07:45 00:06:55 00:07:30

C1 90th Percentile 00:12:03 00:11:38 00:11:32 00:11:57 00:11:58 00:11:02 00:11:46

C2 Best Response Average 00:28:20 00:27:46 00:27:59 00:29:42 00:31:41 00:22:53 00:27:28

C2 90th Percentile 00:59:12 00:58:49 00:59:16 01:02:39 01:09:23 00:48:02 00:59:50

C3 90th Percentile 05:42:25 03:47:44 03:42:55 03:44:21 03:53:17 02:42:48 03:58:41

C4 90th Percentile 04:07:32 05:05:50 03:48:05 04:46:01 03:32:00 02:29:35 03:49:11

4.7 The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership continues to work 
closely with NWAS to improve performance against the ARP targets.

4.8 The average handover time in Salford for 2018/19 was 33.07 minutes (unvalidated) 
this is an increase from 17/18 where average handover time was 32.70 minutes. The 
CCG is working closely with the Trust and NWAS to improve handover time and 
improvements in handover time have been seen in quarter 1 2019/20.

5. Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC)

Page 57



8

5.1 The CCG routinely measures the reduction in bed days associated with delayed 
transfers of care. The data is as follows:

Better Care Fund (BCF): DTOC (delayed days) from hospital per 100,000 population
  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Numerator 1085 986 1726 4259
Denominator 193636 193636 193636 195600

Value 560.3 509.2 891.4 2177.4
2016-17

Plan 779.3 650.2 588.2 692.2
Numerator 1864 1745 1334 1396

Denominator 195600 195600 195600 197398
Value 953.0 892.1 682.0 707.2

2017-18

Plan 938.7 1240.8 1060.3 1027.9
Numerator 760 919 793 1475

Denominator 197398 197398 197398 199046
Value 385.0 465.6 401.7 741.0

2018-19

Plan 922.0 885.5 838.9 760.1
Definition
Numerator: The total number of delayed days (for patients aged 18 and over) for all months of 
baseline/payment period*
Denominator: ONS mid-year population estimate (mid-year projection for 18+ population)
*Note: this is different to ASCOF Delayed Transfer of Care publication which uses ‘patient snapshot’ collected 
for one day each month.

5.2 The data shows that since Q2 2017/18 each quarter has exceeded the target set.

5.3 The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership are pleased with the 
progress made on DTOCs within GM Trusts and have relaxed reporting on DTOCs.

5.4 There has been a recent change in the way DTOCs are reported. From 1st April 2019 
Intermediate Care DTOCs are included in the figures reported. This has led to an 
increase in the number of DTOCs but this picture should be replicated at all Trusts.

6. Patient Transport Services (PTS)

6.1 NWAS are the current provider of PTS for Greater Manchester. The CCG has not 
been made aware of any patient complaints to date. However, SRFT is increasingly 
raising issues with PTS and stating that patient discharges are being significantly 
delayed due to a lack of PTS vehicles. This issue has been raised with the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership. Over the winter period SRFT 
utilised patient transport services from St John’s Ambulance on an ad hoc basis.

6.2 Across GM the service was performing in line with activity estimates for the period 
1st July 2017 to 31st October 2018. However, unplanned activity was 35% above 
contract baselines and weekday activity after 6pm was 85% above baseline. This is 

Page 58



9

putting a strain on the service as most of the unplanned activity also occurs during 
rush hour.

6.3 PTS is being reviewed by the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership and workshops have been held to gather ideas for improvements.

7. CQUIN Update

CQUIN Description Progress
CUR Clinical Utilisation Review (CUR) - 

Installation and Implementation; 
application and use leading to reduction 
in inappropriate hospital utilisation; 
reporting of results. CUR is a proven 
approach, supported by robust medical 
intelligence in the form of an 
internationally developed clinical 
evidence base built into clinical 
decision-support software. CUR can 
help to prevent unnecessary hospital 
admissions and reduce length of stay 
for patients by determining the most 
suitable level of care according to 
clinical need.

The CQUIN does not 
need to be formally 
signed off by the 
CCG; it is signed off 
by NHS England. One 
of the requirements of 
the CQUIN however, 
is that the Trust must 
update the CCG on 
progress. This is done 
via the Urgent and 
Emergency Care 
Delivery Board. To 
date the Trust has 
met all milestones.

Same Day Emergency 
Care (SDEC) - 
Pulmonary Embolus

Achieving 75% of patients with 
confirmed pulmonary embolus being 
managed in a same day setting where 
clinically appropriate.

This CQUIN will report 
to UECDB. Reporting 
will begin after Q1

SDEC - Tachycardia with 
Atrial Fibrillation

Achieving 75% of patients with 
confirmed atrial fibrillation being 
managed in a same day setting where 
clinically appropriate.

This CQUIN will report 
to UECDB. Reporting 
will begin after Q1

SDEC - Pulmonary 
Embolus

Patients with or confirmed Community 
Acquired Pneumonia should be 
managed in a same day setting where 
clinically appropriate.

This CQUIN will report 
to UECDB. Reporting 
will begin after Q1

8. Recommendations

8.1 The Adult’s Commissioning Committee is asked to note the contents of this report. 

Stephen Tilley
Senior Service Improvement Manager

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Adult Commissioning Committee Workplan  19/20

Date Committee Items & Authors Papers due by 
Finance Report  (paper) – Steve 
Dixon 
Business Case(s) 

10 July 2019 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (3)

Briefing updates

Urgent & Emergency Care Update – 
Stephen Tilley 

Tuesday 2nd July 
for decisions

Wednesday 3rd 
July for briefings 

Finance Report  (paper) – Steve 
Dixon
Business Case(s) 

LD Supported Housing – Paul Walsh

11 September 2019 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (4)

Briefing updates

Public Health Update – Gillian 
McLauchlan

Integrated Community Based Care 
Group – Harry Golby

Home Care Update – Andrew Briffa 

Tuesday 3rd 
September for 
decisions

Wednesday 4th 
September for 
briefings

Finance Report (verbal) – Steve 
Dixon
Business Case(s) 
Adult Transformation Services – 
Sarah Cannon

Postural Stability Service (Gillian 
McL/Helen Dugdale) (or Nov)

 9 October 2019 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (5)

Briefing updates

Continuing Healthcare Update – 
Jacquie Purser

Planned Care Update – Annette 
Donegani

Tuesday 1st 
October for 
decisions

Wednesday 2nd 
October for 
briefings

Finance Report  (paper) – Steve 
Dixon
Business Case(s) 

Postural Stability Service (Gillian 
McL/Helen Dugdale) (or Nov)

6 November 2019 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (6)

Briefing updates

Extra Care Model – Paul Walsh

Adult Social Care Update – Judd 
Skelton

Tuesday 29th 
October for 
decisions

Wednesday 30th 
October for 
briefings

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



Finance Report  (paper) – Steve 
Dixon

Business Case(s) 

Carer Support & Specification – Paul 
Walsh 

End of Life Care – Andrea Lightfoot

MSK Single Point of Referral – Tori 
Quinn

 8 January 2020 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (7)

Briefing updates

Mental Health Update – Judd 
Skelton

Cancer Update – Amit Gaokar

Tuesday 17th 
December for 
decisions

Wednesday 18th 
December for 
briefings

N.B.  Earlier 
submission date 
owing to the 
Christmas/NY 
break 

Finance Report (verbal) – Steve 
Dixon

Business Case(s) 

12 February 2020 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (8)

Briefing updates

Urgent & Emergency Care Update – 
Stephen Tilley

Tuesday 4th 
February for 
decisions

Wednesday 5th 
February for 
briefings

Finance Report  (paper) – Steve 
Dixon
Business Case(s) 

11 March 2020 Adult 
Commissioning 
Committee (9)

Briefing updates

Public Health Update – Gillian 
McLauchlan

Integrated Community Based Care 
Group – Harry Golby

Tuesday 3rd March 
for decisions

Wednesday 4th 
March for 
briefings

The following business cases will need to come to ACC at some point but at time of writing, 
prospective dates were not clear

 Diabetes education  
 Urgent Treatment Centre 
 CURE Business Case
 Eating Disorder

Page 62


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 12 June 2019 - Chair - 5 minutes
	4 Finance Report - Joanne Hardman - 20 minutes
	5 Adult Commissioning Report - Harry Golby/Judd Skelton - 15 minutes
	6 Adults Transformation Programme Report - Harry Golby/Judd Skelton - 15 minutes
	7 Briefing Update - Urgent & Emergency Care - Stephen Tilley - 15 minutes
	8 Draft ACC Workplan 2019/20 - Chair - 5 minutes

